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Climate change – update
web. Animals such as sponges and corals 

also consume phytoplankton, which can 

live for decades to hundreds of years. 

When it dies it forms mats on the seabed 

that are buried under sedimentation.

Ocean close to acid tipping point

Scientists from the University of New South 

Wales and CSIRO recently looked at seasonal 

changes in pH and the concentration of an 

important chemical compound, carbonate, 

in the Southern Ocean. Their results, 

published in the Proceedings of the National 

Academy of Science, show that these 

seasonal changes will amplify the effects of 

human carbon dioxide emissions on ocean 

acidity, speeding up the process of ocean 

acidification by 30 years. This so-called 

‘tipping point’ of acidification had been 

predicted to occur when atmospheric CO2 

levels hit 550 parts per million, around the 

year 2060. 

However, new research shows that levels 

of carbonate that marine creatures need 

to build and maintain their shells drops 

naturally in winter, due to natural variations 

in factors such as ocean temperature, 

currents and mixing, and pH.  The 

university’s Dr McNeil says the tipping 

point is likely to be reached at far lower 

atmospheric CO2 levels – about 450 parts 

per million, which also happens to be the 

target set by the IPCC for stabilisation of 

CO2 emissions. Experts agree that the only 

way to prevent ocean acidification is to 

reduce CO2 emissions.

Global shellfish decline

In a study looking at the effect of ocean 

acidification on shellfish, researchers at 

Stony Brook University’s School of Marine 

and Atmospheric Sciences showed that 

the larval stages of shellfish species were 

extremely sensitive to enhanced levels of 

carbon dioxide in seawater.

Under carbon dioxide concentrations 

estimated to occur later this century, clam 

and scallop larvae showed a more than 

50% decline in survival. These larvae were 

broke off the Ross Ice Shelf eight or nine 

years ago.

Its future is uncertain as it could well go 

close to New Zealand or might circle round 

in an eddy or gyre. The AAD said that the 

berg was not yet a danger to shipping, 

although it could pose a hazard as it  

broke up during the next six months to  

two years.

Glacier retreat has benefits

Large blooms of phytoplankton are 

flourishing in areas of open water left 

exposed by the recent and rapid melting 

of ice shelves and glaciers around the 

Antarctic Peninsula. As the blooms die 

back phytoplankton sinks to the seabed 

where it can store carbon for thousands or 

millions of years. Scientists from the British 

Antarctic Survey estimate that this new 

natural ‘sink’ is taking an estimated 3.5 

million tonnes of carbon from the ocean 

and atmosphere each year.

Phytoplankton uses chlorophyll and 

other pigments to absorb sunlight for 

photosynthesis and when it grows in large 

numbers, it changes the way the ocean 

surface reflects sunlight. It is eaten by krill 

and is the foundation of the ocean food 

Carbon emissions

Scientists from the Global Carbon Project 

(GCP), which has more than 30 climate 

specialists, have reported that carbon 

emissions from fossil fuels rose 2% in 2008 

to an all-time high of 8.7 billion tonnes. 

Emissions last year were 29% higher than 

in 2000, reflecting a sprint in economic 

growth this decade and a massive 41% 

increase over 1990, the reference year for 

the United Nation’s Kyoto Protocol.

Researchers said that oceans and forests, 

which absorb most of the carbon dioxide 

(CO2) through photosynthesis, were 

failing to keep up with the gigatonnes 

of emissions.  In the past 50 years, the 

proportion of CO2 pumped into the 

atmosphere and remaining there had risen 

from about 40 – 45%. 

Iceberg off Macquarie Island

In a rare sight at Macquarie Island in 

October, a huge iceberg estimated at 500m 

long and 50m high was spotted about 

eight kilometres north-west of the island 

by Australian Antarctic Division (AAD) 

expeditioners. AAD said that as it was a 

tabular iceberg with vertical sides it was 

likely to be part of a massive berg that 
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factors like rising temperatures will have 

on krill.

Krill is a cornerstone species in the Antarctic 

ecosystem, meaning that multiple animals 

depend on krill or depend on the creatures 

that feed on krill.  The fishing of krill, used 

primarily as food for farmed fish, has already 

affected the ability of whale populations to 

bounce back to their pre-whaling levels and 

any additional strain on the krill population 

will hinder the whales further. 

Other implications

Increasing ocean acidification is affecting 

more than just the whales’ food supply. 

Research from Monterey Bay Aquarium 

Research Institute, in California, has shown 

that an ocean with lower pH changes 

the way that sound travels through it. 

They suggest sound can travel up to 70% 

further with a 0.3 decrease in pH.

Cetaceans depend on sound for 

communication, mating and as a 

direction finder. So the noisier the marine 

environment gets, the more confusing it is 

for all types of whales.

The journal, Science, recently published 

research suggesting higher levels of acidity 

in the ocean also affected the way ear 

bones in fish form. These tiny bones affect 

the fish’s perception of speed and direction, 

similar to the way human ear bones 

provide information on balance.  A lower 

also smaller and took longer to develop 

into the juvenile stage. Oysters also grew 

more slowly at this level of carbon dioxide 

but their survival was only diminished at 

carbon dioxide levels expected next century.

Researchers said: “We’ve blamed shellfish 

declines on brown tide, overfishing, and 

local low-oxygen events. However, it’s likely 

that ocean acidification also contributes  

to this”.

Hungry whales, too

Meanwhile, research carried out at ADD 

shows that acidification is also affecting 

krill, as it has a shell which is partly made 

from calcium carbonate. This substance 

dissolves or even fails to form when 

acidity rises. AAD will continue with a 

study to look at the combined effects 

that acidification and other environmental 

Ocean acidity is affecting the ability of  
krill to form a shell. 

Photo courtesy of Steve Nicol,  
Australian Antarctic Division
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Distinctively
different

BDO Kendalls is the new name for a long established accounting 
and business advisory service that has assisted professional 
fishermen to create and retain wealth for more than 30 years.

For a Distinctively different approach that combines local strength 
with global and national capabilities contact either Paul Breen or 
Peter Sander today.

Helping you create and retain wealth.

pH was associated with the ear bones 

becoming oversized, which is suspected 

to cause disorientation in the fish. This 

research could well have implications for 

whales because fish and whales have bones 

made from the same substance – calcium 

carbonate.

Coral reefs

The implications of a more acidic ocean on 

coral reefs, which are primarily constructed 

of calcium carbonate, also have scientists 

worried. Researchers now predict that if 

carbon dioxide emissions continue to rise 

at the current rate, by 2100 cold water 

corals will be unable to grow in 70% of 

their current habitat. For tropical corals, 

like those found at the Great Barrier 

Reef, the numbers could be much worse. 

Acidification combined with bleaching from 

climate change could mean that corals are 

wiped out. 

Half of the world’s population depends on 

the ocean as their primary food source. 

With increasing ocean acidification likely 

to affect marine food ecosystems and 

substantially change commercial fish 

stocks, this could have the flow-on effect 

in threatening food security for millions 

of people. Coral reefs also have indirect 

benefits for coastal populations, protecting 

many sea shores and coastal communities 

from the brunt of storms and waves.
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WEBSITE LINKS

Australian Government

Australian Fisheries Management Authority 
(AFMA)
www.afma.gov.au
Australian Maritime Safety Authority
www.amsa.gov.au
The Bureau of Meteorology
www.bom.gov.au/marine
CSIRO – Marine and Atmospheric Research
www.cmar.csiro.au 
Department of Agriculture Fisheries and Forestry 
(DAFF)
also includes:
Australian Bureau of Agricultural and Resource 
Economics (ABARE)
Australian Quarantine and Inspection  
Service (AQIS)
Biosecurity Australia (BA) 
Bureau of Rural Sciences (BRS)
www.daff.gov.au
Department of Environment and Water  
Resources (DEW)
www.environment.gov.au 
Fisheries Research and Development  
Corporation (FRDC)
www.frdc.com.au 
Food Standards Australia New Zealand (FSANZ)
www.foodstandards.gov.au
National Oceans Office (NOO)
www.oceans.gov.au/home.jsp 
OceanWatch also includes:
SeaNet
www.oceanwatch.org.au 
Seafood Services Australia (SSA)
www.seafood.net.au 
Seafood Training Australia (STA)
www.seafoodtraining.com.au

State

Department of Primary Industries, Parks,  
Water and Environment
www.dpipwe.tas.gov.au and/or  
www.fishing.tas.gov.au
Marine and Safety Tasmania
www.mast.tas.gov.au/domino/mast/newweb.nsf
Natural Resource Management (NRM)
www.nrmtas.com.au 
Tasmanian Aquaculture and Fisheries Institute
www.tafi.org.au
Tasmanian Seafood Industry Council (TSIC)
www.tsic.org.au

Fisheries Wholesale

Master Fish Merchants Association
www.mfma.com.au/
Melbourne Wholesale Fish Market
www.chsmith.com.au/fish-prices/index.htm 
Sydney Fish Market
www.sydneyfishmarket.com.au

Tasmanian Seafood Industry Council

PO Box 878, Sandy Bay 7006  

117 Sandy Bay Road, Sandy Bay 7005

Chief Executive: Neil Stump 0417 394 009

neilstump@tsic.org.au  www.tsic.org.au

P 03 6224 2332  F 03 6224 2321

Wild Fisheries

Tasmanian Abalone Council Ltd 
262 Arglye Street Hobart 7000 

President: Greg Woodham  0419 524 174 

Chief Executive: Dean Lisson  0419 599 954 

Administration Manager: Jillian Freeman  

P 03 6231 1955  F 03 6231 1966 

E admin@tasabalone.com.au 

Tasmanian Commercial Divers Association 
PO Box 878, Sandy Bay 7006 

President: Bryan Denny 0417 502 195

Tasmanian Rock Lobster Fishermen’s Association  
President: John Sansom  03 6247 7284 

CEO: Rodney Treloggen 

P/F 03 6376 1805  0418 138 768 

Secretary/Treasurer: Margaret Atkins 

PO Box 109, South Hobart 7004

Tasmanian Scalefish Fishermen’s Association 

President: Shane Bevis   P/F 03 6247 7634 

Secretary: Vacant  

PO Box 332, Somerset 7322. 

Tasmanian Scallop Fishermen’s Association 

286 Windermere Road, Windermere 7252  

President: John Hammond 0429 130 238 

Secretary/Treasurer: (Mrs) Jill Hammond 

Ph 03 6328 1478  Fax 03 6328 1421

Tasmanian Shark Fishermen’s Association 
64 Ormond Street, Bellerive 7018 

President: Brian Bailey 0407 874 199 

Secretary/Treasurer: (Mrs) Heather Bailey 

P 03 6244 2775  F 03 6244 6939

Tasmanian Sashimi Fishermen’s Association 

14 Tabor Road, Acton Park 7170 

President: Peter Green 

Secretary: David Chaffey  P 03 6248 1928

Aquaculture

Tasmanian Aquaculture Council 
PO Box 878, Sandy Bay 7006

117 Sandy Bay Road, Sandy Bay 7005

Chairman: Geoff Pickard 6225 1547 

TSIC: Neil Stump  0417 394 009

E neilstump@tsic.org.au

Oysters Tasmania
Dr Tom Lewis or Raymond Murphy
P 03 6231 9033

E management@oysterstasmania.org

Tasmanian Salmonid Growers Association 
PO Box 321, Sandy Bay 7006 
Chairman: Chris Dockray 
Executive Officer: Pheroze Jungalwalla 
P 03 6214 0555   
E Contact@tsga.com.au   www.tsga.com.au

Tasmanian Shellfish Executive Council 
PO Box 878 Sandy Bay 7006 
Chairman: Tom Kennedy  0408 352 321 
kennycasual@hotmail.com
Secretary: Tom Gray 0419 398 640 

Tasmanian Abalone Growers Association 
Chairman: Mike Wing 
PO Box 11, Dunalley 7177 
P 03 6253 6007 F 03 6253 6009

Bruny Island Shellfish Growers Association 
President: Des Wolfe   
PO Box 2080, Lower Sandy Bay 7005   
P/F 03 6225 0321

DPIPWE Marine Resources

Scallops, Giant Crab, Octopus, or Rock Lobster Inquiries 
James Parkinson P 03 6233 6797 or  
Hilary Revill P 03 6233 6036 or
David Jarvis P 03 6233 6380

Abalone or Marine Plant Inquiries 
Matt Bradshaw P 03 6233 3512

Commercial Dive Inquiries or Inshore Clams 
Greg Ryan P 03 6216 4227

Scalefish Inquiries 
Andrew Sullivan P 03 6233 3018

Recreational Fishing Inquiries 
Rod Pearn P 03 6233 7042

Licensing Inquiries  P 03 6233 2147

Quota Monitoring Inquiries  P 03 6233 3539

Marine Farm Planning/Operations Inquiries 
Will Joscelyne P 03 6233 3527

Marine Environment Inquiries 
Graham Woods P 03 6233 7752

Special Permits 
Robert Green P 03 6233 6208

Training

Seafood Training Tasmania 
2a Gladstone Street, Battery Point 7004 
Manager Rory Byrne  
P 03 6233 6442  F 03 6223 2780 
stt@seafoodtrainingtas.com.au

Commonwealth Fisheries Association
CEO: 
PO Box 9022, Deakin, ACT 2600
P 02 6260 1283  F 02 6260 3505
E ceo@comfish.com.au
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A PROUDLY TASMANIAN
ENTERPRISE 

“Our people are our family”

George Doumouras
General Manager

“Your guarantee of quality & integrity”

41 – 42 Franklin Street ◆ George Town ◆ Tasmania ◆ 7253 ◆ Australia 

Phone (03) 6382 3466 ◆ Fax (03) 6382 3060 ◆ Mobile (George) 0418 133 419
ABN 76 076 219 988

Our George Town plant is a large, export accredited, multi-purpose seafood processing facility, supplying  

a range of ocean fresh species, including:

	 •	 Orange Roughy	 •	 Smooth Dory	 •	 Oreo Dory 

	 •	 Blue Grenadier	 •	 Pink Ling	 •	 Silver Warehou 

	 •	 Garfish	 •	 Calamari	 •	 Arrow Squid 

	 •	 Shark	 •	 Australian Salmon	 •	 Mackerel 

	 •	 School Whiting	 •	 Scallops	 •	 and other deep sea fish.

With our own fishing vessel we catch quality seafood for you. George Town Seafoods is EU compliant which 

ensures quality and freshness that is unparalleled in our industry. 

Give us a call today for all your seafood requirements.
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